DRFP-52838/GBX

Aircraft Support Services

Responses to Submitted Questions
NOTE:  Additional Questions & Responses will be posted at a later date

1.  
Question:  What is NASA trying to accomplish in transitioning to a non-NASA owned P-3?

Response: NASA is not looking to transition to a P-3 per se, but an aircraft with similar capabilities provided such is affordable.  NASA prefers to transition away from the 38 year old airframe and its associated structural issues.  However, if an alternative aircraft is not available or affordable, NASA reserves the option to continue with the existing aircraft. 
2.
Question: DRFP-Page 8 – no schedule is included for 2.0 Operation of Fuel Farm

Response:  Reference SOW, page 3, Section 2.0
3.  
Question:  SOW-2.1.A Option 2 final paragraph – operational support is not defined in Section 3.3

Response The context of the statement in 2.1.a, is that actual flight operations are covered under 3.3, and are not in the baseline.  The baseline requirement is to keep the aircraft and access to the crew in a fashion to be able to support flight operations when tasked which is done on an IDIQ basis.  
4.
Question:  SOW-2.2 Para 1 says NASA will crew the aircraft.  Para 2 says Contractor will crew aircraft.  Please clarify.

Response: NASA intends to crew the B-200 when  the NASA pilots are available.  However, NASA requires the contractor to provide one or both pilots given one week's prior notice.  NASA anticipates providing the crews for at least 80% of the flights.  
5.  
Question: SOW 2.2-What is the base salary rate of a control tower operator at WFF?  What is the base salary rate of a fuel farm operator at WFF?

Response:  Non-professional wage rates are governed by the Department of Labor Wage Determination No. 2002-357 Revision 2 and 94-2095 Revision 20 which incorporates the Exhibit 7, Collective Bargaining Agreement and rates are incorporated within.
6.
Question: SOW 2.4 Who provides fuel for the DC-8?

Response: A NASA credit card specific to each NASA owned aircraft, including the DC-8, shall be used by the crew to purchase fuel when contract or government fuel is available. In the event there is no government or government contract fuel available, the contractor shall purchase fuel which will be considered a Mission Peculiar Cost.   

7.
Question: SOW 3.5 Not enough data is provided for a cost-effective proposal on UAV operations


Response: The Government is looking for offerors to propose a shopping list of available UAV's to meet the requirements set forth in the SOW.  

8.
Question: SOW 3.8 Reference should be to Section 2.3 (not Section 2.4)


Response:  That is Correct.
9.
Question Part 1:  SOW 5.1 .a)ii  What is Clause H.13? 


Response:  Reference DRFP page 48, Clause H.13 "Conditions for Performance of Commercial and Marketing Activities" – The Clause sets forth procedures and conditions for performance of commercial and marketing activities


Question Part 2:  SOW 5.1.a)iii  “..exclusively in support of NASA…”  seems in conflict with NASA’s intent of privatizing these aircraft.  Please explain.


Response: It is not NASA's intent to privatize NASA-owned Aircraft.
10. 
Question: SOW 5.2 When is a co-pilot required for the B-200?


Response: The NPR 7900.3 requires two pilots for all NASA Mission Management flights.  

11.  
Question: Attachment B, Is the entire inventory on Attachment B freely available to the Contractor?  Who will be required to maintain this equipment?


Response:  Equipment is available for support for activities under this contract and for commercial activities located at this facility on a non-interference basis.  Equipment is available for support for activities under this contract and for commercial activities located at this facility on a non-interference basis.  The Contractor will be responsible for maintaining equipment.  The user fee for use of the equipment while supporting non NASA activities will be defined in the commercialization clause in the final RFP.  However, NASA is providing the equipment on an “as is basis” and repairs will be at the discretion and expense of the contractor.  NASA may choose to task the Contractor to repair Government provided equipment, but in general, does not expect to do so.  Regarding “freely available”, there are NASA property requirements regarding said property leaving the Wallops Flight Facility for example.  Otherwise, the equipment is freely available. 
12. 
Question: Exhibit 6, What is NASA requesting in the Phase-In Plan?


Response:  Reference DRFP page 95, Section L for a description of what should be provided as part of the phase in plan.  In addition, Exhibit 6 is a table to be filled in for cost elements associated with Phase-In.
13.  
Question:  The RFP assumes that the NASA owned aircraft would be available for the entire span of the resulting contract and any contract extensions.  What provisions are there if the aircraft can no longer fly?

Response:  While it is not envisioned that the NASA-owned aircraft would no longer be capable of flying, if this were to happen, a contract modification would be necessary. 
14.
Question: In government owned / commercially operated aircraft who can the contractor include the cost of third party liability insurance in their bid overhead well above the minimum required $200,000/$500,000?

Response:  Application of overheads for cost/price elements are at the discretion of each offeror.
15. 
Question: If the winning contractor hires many of the existing WFF or NASA Staff who will supply the initial Affirmative Action Compliance Information?  Can the winning contract obtain personnel records and history for all the current WFF or NASA staff that may be hired?

Response:  Affirmative Action Compliance Information and any other associated information requirements is the responsibility of the Contractor and shall be coordinated through the incumbent contractor or the International Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers (IAM&AW).
16.
Question: Can we obtain a list of all the current commercial subcontractors used at WFF including information as to their status as a SDB, WOSB, HBCU, HUBZone SBC, VO SBC etc?

Response: The below website is the Goddard Space Flight Center's Small Business Office Home Page.  You will be able to link to listings of the Center's Prime Contractor Listing, as well as, the 8(a) and Hubzone Listing
 http://genesis.gsfc.nasa.gov/industryassist.htm

17.  
Question:  May we also propose on the operation and maintenance of the two ER-2’s?

Response:  This is not part of this solicitation.
18.
Question:  Is it permissible to bid on only certain options or portions of this DRFP?

Response:  Reference Section L, page 93 Section 1, General Instructions.  A single award will be made for performance of this contract in its entirety.
19.
Question:  Is it NASA’s preference regarding the operation of NASA-owned aircraft versus Contractor-owned aircraft?

Response:  This solicitation requires operation of the NASA-owned B200; however, options are provided for consideration of the most cost effective manner to operate either the NASA-owned P-3 or a Commercial Comparable P-3 Aircraft.

20.
Question: For the commercially provided aircraft:  Does NASA desire to continue use of its research aircraft in a public use environment or do you contemplate a more formal flight operations certification for the commercial equivalent aircraft?


Response:  NASA prefers (but does not require) the commercial equivalent aircraft to have been issued a current airworthiness certificate.  The Contractor may choose to operate under public law, but shall allow for the aircraft to be returned to its standard configuration.
21.  
Question:  NASA owned P-3/DC-8 – Are there any life support equipment, maintenance requirement?


Response:  Yes, a list of life support equipment provided will be listed in the RFP.  The Contractor shall be responsible to maintain this equipment.  

22.
Question:  NASA owned P-3/DC-8 – Are there any NASA requirements to maintain technical publications?


Response:  Yes, the Contractor shall be required to have access to all technical publications.  NASA will provide these publications, the Contractor shall maintain the technical publications and replace them as necessary.  

23. 
Question: NASA owned P-3/DC-8 – What are NASA's requirements – if any – for NASA risk assessment to support ARB/MRR process?


Response:  All risks must be identified, mitigated, and reviewed at the Mission Readiness Review Board.
24.
Question:  Is it NASA's intention to not guarantee any flight hours?


Response:  A minimum IDIQ amount will be guaranteed.  The solicitation specifies $700,000.00 over 5 year period (any combination of aircraft).

25.  
Question:  Will a complete list of control tower GFE be provided?


Response:  No.  A list will not be provided; however, the control tower includes all equipment necessary to operate.

26. 
Question:  Library reference materials not available outside.


Response:  We will fix the links or make it available utilizing another method.

27.
Question:  How will the "head tax" and "square footage tax" affect contract operations cost?


Response:  The "head tax" will be assessed against the program not the Contractor.  The square footage charge is only applicable to commercial activities.
28.
Question:  Attachment C: Use of Government facilities – please define "under roof foot" for facility costs. Square feet? Does it include office space?


Response:   Under roof foot cost includes hanger, office, and shop space.  Does not include ramp space for which there is no charge.
29.
Question:  Does the maintenance of fuel trucks & fuel farm include filters?


Response:  Filters for the fuel farm will be provided by NASA.  Filters for the trucks, if contractor chooses to use them, will be the contractor's responsibility.

30.
Question:  For commercial provided aircraft – Does NASA contemplate restrictions for other commercial uses for the aircraft that the contractor provides for this program?  


Response:  Commercial aircraft can support other activity on a non-interference basis with NASA's requirements

31.
Question:  With response to nitrogen/oxygen – Does NASA desire that Contractor maintain and certify local lox farm?


Response:  No

32.
Question:  Government owned DC-8 – if the DC-8 leaves Dryden to be operated out of a separate location, will ground support equipment go with it?


Response:  Yes, ground support equipment will be provided with DC-8 and a list of property will be included.

33.
Question:  NASA-owned B200 – What are FAA requirements for maintaining NASA-owned B200/N8?


Response:  Aircraft shall be maintained in accordance with Federal Aviation Regulations Part 91.

34.
Question:  Does NASA desire maintenance of N8 under a minimum equipment list?


Response:  Yes

35.
Question:  Does NASA require Contractor to have a repair station license/certificate?


Response:  It is preferred but not required.

36.  
Question:  Must Contractor meet all SOW requirements or be considered non-compliant.  For example, a contractor bids all except UAV's is the acceptable?


Response:  Yes
37.  
Question:  For Government owned P-3/DC-8 – Scheduled maintenance – what if parts are not in stock.  Contract must get IDIQ task order to procure?


Response:  As part of the final RFP, a parts list will be provided if Government will furnish parts for scheduled maintenance or whether parts should be included in monthly rate if not parts are to be provided.

38.
Question:  Why are mission management flight operations and maintenance split out for each aircraft type?  Wouldn't one management approach for all classes of aircraft (combined) be more cost effective/efficient?


Response:  The rates were split in this manner due to the different requirements. Our goal is to model this procurement after standard industry practices where a monthly management fee is paid to keep an aircraft in airworthy condition, then a separate hourly and daily rate applies to missions proposed on an airplane basis. By combining the requirement, fleet adjustments and cost tracking per aircraft become cumbersome.  NASA is looking to commit to the minimum required costs to have access to the aircraft.  This allows NASA to better control costs. 

39.  
Question:  Requested rates are inconsistent. Are hourly and daily rates needed for each category of operations? 


Response:  Hourly and daily rates apply on a commercial aircraft. There is no daily fee associated with the Government aircraft.  

40.  
Question:  Will a fuel cost escalation factor be included in the contemplated contract?


Response:  The fuel issue will be revisited regarding both the fuel farm activities and charges for fuel on the various aircraft prior to release of the RFP. 

41.  
Question:  Will this contract be a "model" to be applied to other NASA facilities?


Response:  There is potential for that.
42. 
Question:  For the commercially provided aircraft, how does NASA prefer to compensate the contractor for the initial required modifications?  As a one time task order or to be amortized as part of the lease?


Response:  The aircraft must be in accordance with SOW aircraft configuration requirements.  This would be amortized over the contract period of performance through the monthly management rate.

43.
Question:  Will NASA want to exhaust their supply of A/C parts in stock for NASA-owned A/C?


Response:  Final RFP will define any parts provided and if provided contractor will be expected to use those parts.

44. 
Question:  Will Contractor be responsible for sell off of NASA excess parts?


Response:  No.  Government property disposal procedures will be followed.

45.  
Question:  What will the operation location (bed down base) for the DC-8 be?

Response:  This is an option.  Regarding the Government-owned DC-8 only, there is no specific location at this time.

46.  
Question:  Will there be any types of contingencies for organization to maintain the contract without members of the team being able to fulfill?

Response: No

47.
Question: Will NASA require team members to join together under one contractor name or will each team member be allowed to sign for services provided?

Response:  NASA will make a single award.  Teaming/partnering/subcontracting arrangements are at the discretion of the offeror.
48.
Question:  Reference 2.1.b & M.5- Will NASA guarantee flight hour orders and/or structure the contract for a minimum 3-year base period? Industry will have a difficult, if not impossible time, attracting financial institutions to commit to the capitalization of an EOS-configured commercial variant aircraft IAW 6.1 based upon financial risk analysis of only a 1-year (300 hour) period. The business case analysis (BCA) which will require that it be uniquely modified via an STC to 6.1 specifications, certified to an FAA airworthiness certificated standard, and maintained and operated IAW FAR 125 based upon a 1-year and no minimum flight hour order does not support breakeven and NPV analysis. The financial risk for such an undertaking is tremendous. 

Response: See question 24.
49.
Question:
Reference-H.13 (20)- Request clarification: The clause makes it apparent that NASA does not want to assume any business or liability risk for non-contract activities performed by the contractor. If this is so, then why does NASA mandate that the Government will establish business aspects of performing commercial and marketing activities and their corresponding method of payment?

Response:   The Government will establish the charges for use of the facilities and equipment and method for payment or reimbursement for such use of the facilities/equipment for non-contract work on a non-interference basis.
50.
Question: Reference-H.13 (22)- How is NASA going to determine actual costs of non-contract use of facilities and equipment, especially when these resources may be shared with contract use?


Response:  The amount of non-contract use will be evaluated, negotiated, and recovered based upon usage.
51.
Question:  Reference-H.13 (24)- How does this clause differ from attachment (c), specifically assessing by square footage in H.13 and under roof foot in attachment (c)?

Response:  Clause H.13 will establish rates associated with use for non-contract activities.  Attachment C specifies the facilities and square footage space at Wallops Flight Facility.  This space may be utilized for non-contract work on a non-interference basis.   
52.
Question:  Reference I.4(d)- For clarity purposes please define "prior to award" as used in this clause.

Response:  Successful offer will be notified and prior to the Government signing of contract award, the Material Safety Data Sheet shall be submitted.  Failure to submit the Material Safety Data Sheet may result in successful offeror being considered noncompliant.
53.
Question:
Reference L.12- In some vernacular, transition and phase-in are used interchangeably. In the context of this solicitation, is it correct to assume that phase-in refers to the plan to phase-in to full performance within the 30-day allotted period and transition refers to transitioning from the USG P-3 aircraft to the commercially-available aircraft within the 1 year period specified?
Response:   Yes
54. 
Question:
Reference L.12(3) Sub Factor B Fifth Paragraph- How will the phase-in, purchase order/contract be solicited? What CLIN does the bidder use?

Response:  The phase-in plan and cost shall be submitted with the proposal. Also Reference Exhibit 6.
55.
Question: Reference L.12(3) Sub Factor B Ninth Paragraph- Will you exclude position descriptions from the page limitation of the MS?
Response:   The Government will consider this as part of the RFP preparation.
56.
Question:  Reference L.12(3) Sub Factor B Third Paragraph-Is this the same requirement as shown in the last paragraph of Sub factor A?
Response:  No.  Sub Factor A discusses the function of the teaming/subcontracting arrangements in meeting the requirements of the SOW and the benefits to the Government.  Sub Factor B refers more to the management of the teams/subcontracts, functional requirements and responsibilities and conflict resolution among teams/subcontracts.
57.  
Question:  Reference L.12(3) Sub Factors- Will the government number paragraphs within sub factors to facilitate ease of reference?

Response:  No
58.
Question:  Reference L.12.3, Page 98- Does the term “restrictive legends” mean the same thing as “proprietary data statement”?

Response:  Yes

59.
Question:  Reference L.14 (3) Second Paragraph- Please clarify this clause. What do you mean by proposing entity proposing a policy in lieu of current established policy? Is this the same thing as taking exception to a Section K clause?
Response:  Yes.  Reference K.11 "Use of Government Owned Property".     

60.
Question: Reference L.16- This clause seems to conflict with L.12.3 as to where the SF33 shall be placed. L.16 places it in its own volume along with Section K, whereas, L.12.3 states that it may be placed with the Business Management Plan. Which clause applies to the placement of the SF33?

Response:  Clause L.16

61.
Question: Reference L.9(b)- Does this mean that foldouts equal two pages as described?

Response:  Yes
62.  
Question:  Reference L.9(c)- Will you consider revising the last sentence to state: “Information that can be construed as belonging in one of the other sections of the proposal will not be considered in the evaluation”? We will make every effort to ensure only pricing data is provided in the pricing volume, but due to the subjective nature of a “construed determination,” as described in the current language, the technical and business management proposal are at risk. 

Response:   No, L.9 will remain as stated.
63.
Question:  Reference L.9, L.12(2), & L.16- L.9 describes proposal sections as follows:

Proposal Section -- Mission Suitability Proposal

Proposal Section -- Plans (Safety & Health, Phase-in, Commercialization, Transition, Small Business Subcontracting 

Proposal Section -- Business Proposal

Proposal Section -- Price Proposal

L.12(2) describes mission capability proposal divisions as follows:

Sub-factor A -- Technical Capabilities

Sub-factor B -- Management Plan/Program Resources, including plans (Subcontracting Plan, Transition Plan, and Commercialization Plan)

Sub-factor C -- Safety and Health Plan 

L.16 describes the proposal volumes as follows

Proposal Volume -- SF 33 & Section K

Proposal Volume -- Mission Suitability Proposal

Proposal Volume -- Business Proposal

Proposal Volume -- Price Proposal

The three clauses presented above do not seem to prescribe the same proposal structure. For example, L.9 prescribes plans in a separate section from the mission capability section; however, L.12(2) prescribes plans in Sub-factor B of the mission capability proposal. Which structure does NASA prefer?

Response:  L.9 describes the page limitations for portions of the solicitation. The proposal consists of three sections. They are Mission Suitability, Business, and Price.  L.12 is an instruction for the mission suitability proposal which is broken into sub factors as indicated.  L.16 specifies the number of copies and volume assembly.  The SF33 & Section K will be combined as one volume and the 3 proposal sections with each be a separate volume as specified.
64. 
Question:  Reference Section L.12.1 General Instructions- What does that last statement - if at all possible - mean? Do you anticipate discussions with bidders in the competitive range? If yes, will there be a final proposal revision (FPR) or best and final offer (BAFO) submission?

Response:  If Government determines a successful offeror based on initial submissions, we do not plan to go into discussions or receive any FPR's.
65.  
Question:  Reference Section M4.  Mission Suitability Factor A -- Last Paragraph, Sub-factor B – Second paragraph/last sentence- When you refer to evaluating teaming agreements, are you referring to them in the context of L.12 (3), Sub Factor B, paragraph 4? 

Response:  No, See L.12 Sub Factors A & B for instructions.

66.
Question:  Reference SOW 2.0 Third Paragraph- Does this SOW clause relate to commercialization activities?

Response:  No, Section 2 is baseline work.

67.
Question:  Reference SOW 4.2- Is this an Indemnification Clause? If so, should NASA place this clause in either UCF Section H or K?

Response:  No

